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“Outsourcing - Yes or No?”

In an effort to help companies dealing with cost analysis the
Warehousing Education and Research Council (WERC) has
come up with a plan to develop a web-based tool.  

The tool will provide assistance to companies seeking
to outsource logistics operations in figuring out vital

information that will help in the decision-making process.

+ +

FAQ
 Created an instruction manual for the model which includes key 
terms and questions the may help the user navigate. 

RFI/RFP 
 Developed a structure that allows the user to send out Requests 
for Proposals and Information as well as allows the user to clearly see 
all their new options from those results.

Programming Team
 Exapanded and improved on the existing program as well as con-
structing the RFI/RFP tool online.
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“How to maximize the 
profit of a warehouse?”

“What are the actual costs? 
How are they itemized?”
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Warehouse Logistics Tool

Mathematical Model

Web-Based Application
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In the project planning phase our team 
identified the accomplishments of last 
semesters goals and exapanded on them 
to offer a new RFI/RFP tool along with  
improving the existing model and       
program.
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Extra Information

Definitions 

1. Pallet-a small, low, portable platform on which goods are placed for 
storage or moving, as in a warehouse or vehicle 

2. Euro- sizes for Euro pallet system, adopted by the U.S. 
3. Euro (ISO 1: 80x120 cm)-Standard European Pallet (CEN Standard) used 

mainly for retail business 
4. Standard ISO Pallet (100x120 cm)-mainly used for industrial use 

FAQ

What are the different types of pallets? 

There are standard wood, wood, and plastic pallets.  The dimensions of 
different types of pallets are listed along with the weights (empty pallet) in both 
metric and English units. 

What is the ISO? 

It is the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) that provides 
international quality standards. 

How do all the different types of pallets look like? 
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What are “overtime hours”? 

 Overtime hours are hours that the employee works beyond their required 
amount of hours they are to work per week.  Usually 50% more pay is allotted or 
some other percentage at the company’s discretion.

Maintenance, Utilities, & Other Costs

Instructions

1. Enter total equipment maintenance cost from Equipment tab from the 
model

2. Enter total building maintenance cost from Building tab 
3. Enter utility costs such as electricity, gas, water, etc. 
4. Enter miscellaneous costs from warehouse operations 
5. Cell C5 will calculate the total monthly maintenance cost automatically. 

FAQ

Where does the calculation for equipment maintenance and building 
maintenance cost come from?

Maintenance costs come from the Maintenance, Utilities, and Other tab in the 
model starting from cell K6 and down. Building maintenance costs come from 
the Building tab in the model in the Building cost groups section in cells C12 
through C16. 

What are other possible utilities?

Any commodity or service that the warehouse receives such as 
communication (telephone, internet) or transportation. 

What can be put under other maintenance costs?

      Any cost related to maintaining the warehouse assets. 
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Instructions

1. Think of your company in as many sub-groups as possible. 
a. Within those sub-groups it can be divided further with more detail. 

2. Within each group put the amount of people under that title in “Head 
Count”.

3. In the following column, “Cost/Hour”, enter how much they are paid per 
hour.

4. In the following column, “hrs/day”, enter how many hours the employee 
works per day. 

5. This gives you a total cost per day for each employee. 
6. The “$ of Total” shows you how much of the total cost of employees that 

one person is to possibly closer evaluate their worth. 
7. In the following section names “overtime hours”, repeat the following steps 

1-4 but for the amount of hours beyond the required work week for each 
employee. 

8. The following section labeled “Productive Hours Cost” insert the specific 
information for each employee to get the additional cost of having vacation 
days and how many days they actually work per year.  The end result of 
this section shows how many hours the employee works and how much 
those productive hours cost. 

9. By taking the “Productive Hours Cost” and the total of both the “Regular” 
and “Overtime” hours you can get how much it costs per day to have this 
certain employee. 

FAQ

What should I learn from these results? 

 Although a concrete answer cannot come from learning this information, it 
does show you how much money is going to each of your employees for you to 
be able to evaluate their worth and if you need someone else in their department.
Also if someone if getting paid too much for what they do you now have the tool 
to evaluate what is appropriate. 

What are “productive hours”? 

 Productive hours are hours the employee is actually working their job for 
their goal.  Unproductive hours would be considered lunch breaks, regular 
breaks, and vacation days. 

Instructions Manual/Frequently Asked Questions 


